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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

 
OF THE STATE OF IDAHO 

 

IN THE MATTER OF BIG WOOD RIVER 
GROUND WATER MANAGEMENT AREA 

 

MUNICIPAL PROVIDERS’ 
MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPLICATIONS FOR 
PERMITS FOR THE DIVERSION AND USE 
OF SURFACE AND GROUND WATER 
WITHIN THE SNAKE RIVER BASIN 

 

COME NOW City of Pocatello, City of Bellevue, City of Hailey, City of Idaho Falls, 

City of Ammon, Coalition of Cities1, Falls Water Co., Inc., Veolia Water Idaho Inc. (“Veolia”), 

 
1 The Coalition of Cities is composed of the Cities of Bliss, Burley, Carey, Declo, Dietrich, Gooding, Hazelton, 
Heyburn, Jerome, Paul, Richfield, Rupert, Shoshone, and Wendell. 
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and Wellsprings Group, LLC (collectively, the “Municipal Providers”), by and through their 

respective counsel of record, and hereby move the Director of The Idaho Department of Water 

Resources (“IDWR”) to enter partial summary judgment,  pursuant to Idaho Rules of Civil 

Procedure (“I.R.C.P.”) Rule 56 and IDAPA 37.01.01.220.03, finding that the phrase 

“Applications for municipal water use and for domestic use from community water systems 

shall be considered fully consumptive,” found in the Amended Snake River Basin Moratorium 

Order2 (“Amended SRB Moratorium Order”) at page 28, is not based in fact or law and thus 

must be removed from the Amended SRB Moratorium Order.   Filed concurrently herewith in 

support of this Motion are the Municipal Providers’ Memorandum in Support of Motion for 

Partial Summary Judgment,  and Affidavit of Maximilian C. Bricker in Support of Municipal 

Providers’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment.  

WHEREFORE, the Municipal Providers pray the Director enter an order finding that:  

1. there is no genuine dispute that municipal uses are not always fully consumptive; 

and 

2.  IDWR has no authority to require mitigation amounts in excess of  the “depletive 

effect” or “consumptive use” amounts associated with a new appropriation 

because the Water Appropriation Rules, IDAPA 37.03.08, and Conjunctive 

Management Rules, IDAPA 37.03.11, limit IDWR’s consideration to the 

“depletive effect” or “consumptive use component” of water diversions to ensure 

injury to senior rights will be avoided (see IDAPA 37.03.08.045.01.a, IDAPA 

37.03.11.043.03); and further 

 
2 Am. Snake River Basin Moratorium Order, In the Matter of Applications for Permit for the Diversion and Use of 
Surface and Ground Water Within the Snake River Basin, (Idaho Dep’t of Water Res. Oct. 21, 2022) (“Amended 
SRB Moratorium Order”). 
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3. The Director remove from page 28 of the Amended Order the following 

language:  

“Applications for municipal water use and for domestic use 
from community water systems shall be considered fully 
consumptive.  Applications for domestic purposes from non-
community water systems shall be evaluated on a case-by-case 
basis to determine whether the proposed use is non-
consumptive.”  
 

and replace this language with: 

“Applications for municipal water use and for domestic use 
shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine whether 
the proposed use, or some portion thereof, is non-
consumptive.” 

 
 

Respectfully submitted this 30th day of August, 2023. 
 
SOMACH SIMMONS & DUNN, P.C. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Maximilian C. Bricker, ISB #12283 
Sarah A. Klahn, ISB #7928 
Attorneys for City of Pocatello 
 
 
 
GIVENS PURSLEY LLP  
 
 
____/s/ Michael P. Lawrence___________ 
Michael P. Lawrence, ISB #7288  
Charlie S. Baser, ISB #10884 
Attorneys for City of Hailey and  
Veolia Water Idaho Inc. 
 

MCHUGH BROMLEY, PLLC 
 
 
__/s/ Candice M. McHugh___________ 
Candice M. McHugh, ISB #5908 
Chris Bromley, ISB #6530 
Attorneys for the Coalition of Cities, City of 
Bellevue and Wellsprings Group, LLC 
 
 
HOLDEN KIDWELL HAHN & CRAPO, 
PLLC 
 
__/s/ Robert L. Harris_______________ 
Robert L. Harris, ISB# 7018 
Attorneys for City of Idaho Falls, City of 
Ammon, and Falls Water Co., Inc. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
I hereby certify that on this 30th day of August, 2023, a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document was served by email and addressed to the following:  
 

Gary Spackman, Director 
Mat Weaver, Acting Director 
IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
RESOURCES 
PO Box 83720 
Boise, ID  83720-0098 
Gary.Spackman@idwr.idaho.gov 
Mathew.weaver@idwr.idaho.gov  
file@idwr.idaho.gov  
 

Garrick L. Baxter 
Deputy Attorney General 
Idaho Department of Water Resources 
PO Box 83720 
Boise, ID  83720-0098 
Garrick.baxter@idwr.idaho.gov  
 

Norman M. Semanko 
Payton G. Hampton 
PARSONS BEHLE LATIMER 
800 W. Main Street, Suite 1300 
Boise, ID  83702 
nsemanko@parsonsbehle.com 
phampton@parsonsbehle.com 
ecf@parsonsbehle.com 

Robert L. Harris  
HOLDEN, KIDWELL, HAHN & CRAPO, 
PLLC  
P.O. Box 50130  
1000 Riverwalk Drive, Suite 200  
Idaho Falls, ID 83405 
rharris@holdenlegal.com  

Candice McHugh  
Chris Bromley  
McHugh Bromley, PLLC  
380 South 4th Street, Suite 103  
Boise, ID 83702  
cmchugh@mchughbromley.com   
cbromley@mchughbromley.com   

James R. Laski 
Heather E. O’Leary 
LAWSON LASKI CLARK, PLLC 
PO Box 3310 
Ketchum, ID  83340 
jrl@lawsonlaski.com 
heo@lawsonlaski.com 
efiling@lawsonlaski.com 
 

W. Kent Fletcher 
FLETCHER LAW OFFICE 
PO Box 248 
Burley, ID  83318 
wkf@pmt.org 

Jerry R. Rigby 
Chase T. Hendricks 
RIGBY, ANDRUS & RIGBY, PLLC 
25 North Second East 
Rexburg, ID  83440 
jrigby@rex-law.com 
chendricks@rex-law.com 
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Albert P. Barker 
Travis L. Thompson 
MARTEN LAW LLP 
PO Box 63 
Twin Falls, ID  83303-0063 
abarker@martenlaw.com 
tthompson@martenlaw.com 
jnielsen@martenlaw.com 
 

Thomas J. Budge 
Elisheva M. Patterson 
RACINE OLSON, PLLP 
PO Box 1391 
Pocatello, ID  83204 
tj@racineolson.com 
elisheva@racineolson.com  

John K. Simpson 
MARTEN LAW LLP 
PO Box 2139 
Boise, ID  83701-2139 
jsimpson@martenlaw.com 
 

Scott N. Pugrud 
IDAHO POWER COMPANY 
PO Box 70 
Boise, ID 83707 
Spugrud2@idahopower.com 

Dylan B. Lawrence 
VARIN THOMAS LLC 
PO Box 1676 
Boise, ID  83701-1676 
dylan@varinthomas.com 

Michael P. Lawrence  
Charlie S. Baser  
Givens Pursley LLP  
P O Box 2720  
Boise, ID 83701-2720  
mpl@givenspursley.com   
csb@givenspursley.com  
  

Matthew A. Johnson  
Brian O’Bannon  
WHITE PETERSON GIGRAY & 
NICHOLS, P.A.  
5700 E. Franklin Rd., Ste. #200  
Nampa, ID 83687-7901 
mjohnson@whitepeterson.com  
bobannon@whitepeterson.com  
 

Evan Robertson  
ROBERTSON & SLETTE, PLLC 
PO Box 1906  
Twin Falls, ID 83303-1906 
erobertson@rsidaholaw.com  

 
 
COURTESY COPIES VIA EMAIL TO BWRGWMA Advisory Committee Members: 
 

Corey Allen 
callen@sunvalley.com 

Cooper Brossy 
Cooper.brossy@gmail.com 

Rod Hubsmith 
Kaysi10@live.com 

Sharon Lee 
Slee247@mac.com 
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Pat McMahon 
pat@svwsd.com 

Kristy Molyneux 
Jkmoly78@gmail.com 

Carl Pendleton 
pendletonranch@hotmail.com 

Pat Purdy 
pat@purdyent.com 

William Simon 
Wasimon9@gmail.com 

Michelle Stennett 
mstennett@senate.idaho.gov 

Nick Westendorf 
nick@41farms.com 

Brian Yeager 
Brian.yeager@haileycityhall.org  

 
 

___________________________________ 
Maximilian C. Bricker, ISB #12283 
. 

 
 


